MINUTES OF THE TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO ASSOCIATION OF
INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL ADVISERS ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
HELD ON FRIDAY APRIL 13™ 2007 BEGINNING AT 9:45 A.M.

VENUE: Kapok Hotel, Cotton Hill, Maraval
Officiating Officer: Henry Harper, General Manager — TTAIFA.

Mr. Harper welcomed the guest speaker — Mr. Clarry Benn, his assistant — Ms. Narissa
Lezama and the gentlemen from CUNA Caribbean.

At this juncture the meeting was officially called to order.

The Officiating Officer then brought members’ attention to the Standing Orders and
asked that they pay full attention to them, in particular Standing Order number 1 which
stated that all cell phones must be switched off.

The minutes having been published on the TTAIFA website and circulated via the email
to members was taken as read.

CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES
Motion moved to confirm the minutes was made by:

David Dillon of Clico
Seconded by Errol Toussaint of Clico

There were no dissenting voices from the floor therefore the motion was carried by all.

The President, Mr. Cecil Frederick preceded his report by asking all to stand and read the
association’s Mission Statement.

He then read his report.
COMMENTS ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Mr. Garth Thomas — a Past President and Congress Director of TTAIFA said that it was
with a sense of pride that he sat and listened to the report that was presented on behalf of
the board of directors by the President. He added that this was one of the best report he
had heard in the history of TTAIFA.

Mr. Henry Harper also added his congratulations to the President on a well balanced
report.

Continuing, Mr. Harper asked to be excused as he did not officially recognise the
presence of one of our stalwarts — Mr. Garth Thomas. He said that sometimes we take
things for granted.



Motion for the adoption of the Board of Directors’ Report.

Moved by: ~ Maxim Marquez of the Maritime Financial Group
Seconded by: Fabian Carew of Clico

Motion carried by all.

The guest speaker, Mr. Clarry Benn, Project Co-ordinator for the National Financial
Literacy Programme was then asked to address the members.

Mr. Benn sought to clear a little misinformation pertaining to Ms. Lezama’s position. He
stated that she was not his assistant, but in fact a Research Officer attached to the
National Financial Literacy Programme.

He then started his delivery with a little jest, referring to some of the familiar faces he
saw upon entering the room, one such person being Garth Thomas. He also noted that in
his former position at the Unit Trust Corporation, Mr. Thomas was in the trenches with
him in the building of the UTC.

Mr. Benn also added that he knew of LUATT and that this organisation had significant
inputs in the growth and development of the UTC. However, he admitted that his

awareness of TTAIFA was a recent one, not knowing that LUATT was now TTAIFA.
He said that TTAIFA was considered as one of the movers and shakers in the industry.

During his presentation he referred to the importance of TTAIFA in the financial industry
landscape on many occasions. He also noted that the Central Bank was an independent
body providing information that was credible and unbiased. Mr. Benn continued saying
that the Central Bank was able to see the financial aspects of the society on a large scale
and this was the reason for their thrust into the National Financial Literacy Programme.

The view or consensus was that as a nation we must strive to develop a more financially
literate public.

The members were informed that the National Financial Literacy Programme would be
introduced to selected schools in Trinidad and Tobago, initially in 64 schools in the 8
educational districts in the term beginning April 2007. It was hoped that by September
2007 it would be extended to other schools to include primary level.

Some parts of the programme were geared towards the following issues and groups:

New & prospective home owners

Small business (introducing young people to entrepreneurship)
Recognition of the role of the SME’s

Support of the NGO’s

Community groups



e Religious groups
The approach was one that was multi-channelled.

The members were told that the programme was ongoing as it was recognised as a tool
that could influence changes in attitude among the masses. However, this would not take
place in lor 2 years, but over a number of years.

The Secretariat to provide support services to the National Financial Literacy
Programme was established with a staff of 4 persons to date, headed by Mr. Benn, two
research officers and an administrative person.

He also said that 4 working groups have been established and made a call for material
from the various sectors and organisations. He then made a request to Mr. Frederick on
the spot which was replied to in the affirmative.

The reason for seeking and securing material from various organisations was to gain
more knowledge and insight as those involved in this Central Bank initiative did not
know everything. Also the programme was not overflowing with funding.

Mr. Benn also made a call for facilitators who would give freely of their time to go out
into the communities, this was an area that would need skilled manpower.

QUESTIONS FROM THE FLOOR

1. Mr. Error Toussaint of Clico had a few suggestions:

(a) In terms of small businesses and entrepreneurship their should be
@) a protection unit for liabilities, workers compensation etc.
(i1) legal aspects — there must be measures to manage them legally in
their businesses
(i1i1))  there should be a follow-up procedure on the operations of the
small businesses.

Mr. Benn thanked Mr. Toussaint for his contribution and said that that would be a
huge exercise which would be considered, but not implemented immediately.

He stated that he wore another hat as Chairman of the Eximbank and in that
capacity they have been trying to get the government to put things in place to
manage the SME’s. He added that the scale of deficiency in this area was huge
and it was quite a mammoth task to undertake.

2. Mr. David Dillon of Clico asked (notwithstanding the financial constraints), if
one would be able to access the information through the website or through
CD’s.



He answered that some information was available on the website but the site
was not fully developed at that point in time.

Mr. Mc Mayo of the Maritime Financial Group said he did not understand
why TTAIFA was not one of the stakeholders in the National Financial
Literacy Programme

He (Mr. Mc Mayo) said that TTAIFA’s members, whose business it was to
advise people daily on their finances, should have representation in this
programme and observed that TTAIFA’s logo was not included with those of
the stakeholders.

Mr. Benn said that TTAIFA was on board and the request for the logo would
be made and added once received.

Mr. Harper interjected that it was TTAIFA that was proactive in approaching
the Central Bank on the National Financial Literacy Programme.

At this point Mrs. Marlene Seepaul of the Maritime Financial Group moved a vote of
thanks and presented Mr. Benn with a token of appreciation. She also thanked Ms.
Lezama who assisted him in his presentation.

A 10 minute break was then given by the Chairman at 11:35 a.m.

RESUMPTION OF MEETING - 11:45 a.m.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

A representative of Garison & Co. — Ms. Latoya Braithwaite presented the audited report
for the period January — December 2006.

QUESTIONS FROM THE FLOOR

1.

Garth Thomas enquired as to the accuracy of the valuation of TTAIFA’a
building.

He said that the building was well placed in Port of Spain and found the figure
to be a bit low.

Mr. Wiltshire answered saying that it was not a cost but a market value. This
was acceptable to Mr. Thomas.

Motion for the adoption of the audited financial statements.

Moved by: ~ Nat Wiltshire of Guardian Life
Seconded by: Maxim Marquez of the Maritime Financial Group

Motion carried by all.



Mr. Harper then recognised the presence of some of TTAIFA’s past presidents in the
audience, namely:

Maxim Marquez

Harry Goodial

Nat Wiltshire

Garth Thomas

CHANGE OF AUDITORS
A motion was tabled for the change in auditors.

Motion moved by:  Fabian Carew — Secretary/Treasurer TTAIFA
Seconded by: Joel Martinez of Sagicor

Motion was carried by all.

Immediately after the motion was moved, Mr. Errol Toussaint of Clico wished to know
the reason for the change.

Mr. Carew said that the constitution stated that auditors could not serve a term of more
than 5 consecutive years, hence the reason for the change.

Mr. Wiltshire challenged this statement and wished to know where it was stated in the
constitution and bye laws.

Much discussion ensued and after checking the constitution it was noted that it did not
state a specific time frame for the term of an auditor. However, Mr. Frederick said that
TTAIFA had an auditor for a term of 15 years and due to problems encountered we had
to change to the firm Garison & Co. He noted that after this situation, there was an
amendment to chanfe the auditors every 5 years.

Mr. Marquez said that there was nothing to prevent TTAIFA from changing its auditor
and maybe we should update the constitution and bye laws.

Mr. Dillon said he preferred to operate on the side of caution and according to the
constitution. He said that the constitution as it stands does not stipulate any time frame
for an auditor therefore an auditor can be changed each year if there is a desire to so do
therefore there was no need to change the constitution.

Mr. Wiltshire agreed and said that his issue was raised due to the incorrect statement
made by the Secretary/Treasurer pertaining to the time stipulation of an auditor.

Mr. Marquez said that if a resolution was passed to change the auditor every 5 years, then
that should be noted and the necessary changes made to the constitution and bye laws.



INSTALLATION OF THE 2007-2008 BOARD

The Chair began to install the new board and was guided by Mr. Wiltshire to advise the
old board members to vacate their seats prior to the new ones being installed.

Mr. Harper then thanked Mr. Wiltshire and proceeded with the installation identifying the
various roles and requirements. After this, all members were asked to collectively repeat
the oath of office.

Mr. Thomas then asked if the new board was elected by acclamation. He was told yes.

The new board was now officially installed.

The new members were as follows:

Immediate Past President Cecil Frederick
President Raziah Ahmed
Vice President Fabian Carew
Secretary/ Treasurer Alicia Birch
Assistant Secretary/ Treasurer Curtis Dass
Paul Massiah Sherma Henry
Aleem Hosein Maxim Marquez
Nat Wiltshire

South Directors
Marcus Girdharie Patricia Ramoutar
Marlene Seepaul

East Directors
Nina Attong Joel Martinez

Tobago Directors
David Dillon Claudia Robinson-Douglas
(alternate)

CCEPTANCE SPEECH - PRESIDENT RAZIAH AHMED

The incoming President Raziah Ahmed then went through her paces. In her
deliberations, she referred to herself as a team leader and the rest of the board as her
team, pledging to work hard for members to achieve their goals.



She thanked a few people who assisted and supported her, recognizing the value she
could bring to the organisation. They were, Wilfred Holder, Nat Wiltshire, Pamela
Solano, Peter Salvary, Amado Marcano, Lyle Williams (deceased), Clico, TTAIFA South
Chapter and Cecil Frederick.

CARAIFA FOUNDATION

President Ahmed pledged USD500 of her personal funds to the CARAIFA Foundation
and asked that ten persons pledge USD100. towards the foundation. The following
persons answered the call:

Joy Mohammed Marcus Girdharie
Marlene Seepaul Paul Massiah
Errol Toussaint Garth Thomas
Nat Wiltshire Maxim Marquez
Cecil Frederick Pat Ramoutar
Sherma Henry Pranesh Maharaj

Ann-Marie Lee Quai

The President also gave 2 free tickets to attend the reading of noble lauret Sir Vidya
Naipaul at UWI to Nina Attong. In her words, she gave it to the brightest female in
attendance.

The theme for 2007 was “Building the Professional”. Mrs. Ahmed also shared her belief
of servant leadership saying it was not “what can you do for me”, but rather “what can I
do for you.”

AWARDS HIGHLIGHTS

The meeting then moved to the 2007 Awards event. The chairman Mr. Gordon Paul
stood at the lectern and congratulated the newly elected President and her team.

The following were details of the event:

Theme: A Constellation of Stars........ it’s our time to shine
Date: Saturday April 21%
Venue: Centre of Excellence

He said that it would be a tightly run programme that could finish in 2 hours and that his
intention was to have everyone in attendance leave the function feeling on top of the
world.

Other things to be noted was the dim sum style food service and the fact that Garth
Thomas was the 2007 TTAIFA Hall of fame inductee.

Mr. Harper thanked Mr. Paul for his contribution and opened the floor for other business.



OTHER BUSINESS

Mr. Thomas welcomed and congratulated the outgoing and incoming boards. He said he
had not attended TTAIFA’s AGM’s for quite some time and felt encouraged by the
events that took pace at the meeting and the movement of the organisation.

He also said that President Ahmed delivered a powerful speech that should have been
heard by many more and regretted that many members were not present. The chapter
presidents were also encouraged to commit to mobilizing their members, inspiring them
to get actively involved and one way was to attend the AGM.

Mr. Toussaint voiced his agreement with the views expressed by Mr. Thomas and felt
that if the meeting was hosted in a central location there may be more attendance. He
also added two other points (i) that agents should be awarded for long service in the
industry and (ii) that a stipend should be paid to the President and Secretary/Treasurer.

On a point of order, Mr. Marquez informed those present that the AGM as stated in the
constitution must be hosted in Port of Spain and only a resolution could change that.

Mr. Mc Mayo said he has been a member since 1992 and noted the healthy financial
position of the organisation. He continued stating that he was very proud of this and
commended those who worked tirelessely throughout the years and continued to do so to
keep TTAIFA afloat.

Mr. Frederick was also thanked for the fantastic job during his tenure.

Mr. Harper said mention was made by Mr. Gordon Paul about his team, but he wanted to
recognise the efforts of Mrs. Ann Marie Edwards-Mejaries who has been around
TTAIFA for many years, also the efforts of Marcia James, Rhonda Dasent-Alleyne and
Althea Victor.

There being no further matters, the meeting was brought to a close at 12:50 a.m.
Respectfully submitted

Ann Marie Edwards-Mejaries
Administrative Manager



